VILLAGE BOARD MINUTES
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023
6:30 PM
PAGE 2
VILLAGE BOARD MINUTES
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023
6:30 PM
BOARD ROOM, MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 210 COTTONWOOD

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Present:  Trustees de Boer, Truttschel, Pfeiffer, Wallschlager, Conner, Hallquist, President Pfannerstill

Others Present:  Village Manager Bailey, Clerk Igl, Chief Misko, DPW Director Felkner, DPW Operations Manager, DPW Operations Leadman Tom Jenson, Fire Chief Jambretz, Rec Director Rennekamp, Donna Dorau, Sandi Watt, other interested parties.  

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chief Misko and followed by a moment of silence in honor of fallen Milwaukee Police Officer Peter Jerving.  

Public Comments:  Please be advised the Village Board will receive comments from the public related to any item(s) for a three-minute time period per person, with time extensions per the Village President’s discretion.  This meeting will be recorded and will be available online through the Village’s website.  

Caroline Joyce, 5526 W. Capitol Drive, raised concerns about traffic related to the proposed Kwik Trip. She stated that diesel pumping stations will draw larger vehicles that will need to have adequate space to enter/exit.  Additionally, she stated concerns that if truck traffic heads downtown, the street narrows and cars are often parked on the sides of the street.  She stated that the corner of W. Capitol Drive and Cottonwood would be difficult for truck traffic to navigate if turning south.  She asked that the Village Board consider traffic flow for truck traffic.                              

1. Motion (Conner/Pfeiffer) to approve the Village Board minutes of January 23, 2023 and Special Village Board minutes of January 24, 2023.  Motion carried.  Wallschlager abstained from approving the Special Village Board minutes of January 24, 2023. 

2. Consideration of items related to vouchers.
a. Motion (Wallschlager/Truttschel) to approve vouchers for payment in the amount of $5,855,835.65.  Motion carried.

3. Actions related to Licenses and Permits 
a. Motion (Truttschel/Hallquist) to approve Operator’s (Bartender) Licenses as listed.  Motion carried.
b. Consideration of an application for a Class “B” Beer/“Class B” Liquor License for the premises located at 600 Hartbrook Drive (Hartbrook Cafe, Sandi Watt, Agent)
i. Public Hearing to receive comment on the liquor retailer’s license application.
President Pfannerstill opened the Public Hearing at 6:38 p.m.  Applicant Sandi Watt was present.  No comments were heard and the Public Hearing was closed at 6:39 p.m.
ii. Consideration of an action related to issuance of a Class “B” Beer/“Class B” Liquor License for Hartbrook Café.

Trustee Hallquist asked the status of the former Hartland Inn and Village Manager Bailey replied that it would likely be six months before completion.  President Pfannerstill provided background on the liquor license quota and the reserve licenses that require a one time fee of $10,000.  Trustee Pfeiffer asked the owner whether she will be changing her business plan.  Ms. Watt stated that she would like to be open for fish fry’s on Fridays and offer alcoholic beverages, and to offer bloody mary’s and mimosa’s on weekends.  President Pfannerstill stated that she could apply for Class B Beer and Class C wine licenses which do not have quotas.  Trustee Wallschlager asked about the status of bartenders and Ms. Watt responded that all of her staff will be trained and licensed.  Trustee Truttschel asked Ms. Watt how long she owned the business and she responded that she has owned it for 3 years but has worked there for 17.  Trustee Conner clarified that there is no quota for Class B Beer or Class C Wine licenses.  

President Pfannerstill stated that Hartland Inn would have more financial opportunities to ease the pain of the $10,000 reserve fee as the business is a member of the Downtown Business Improvement District.  Trustee Conner asked Ms. Watt if she would consider applying for Class B Beer and Class C Wine licenses and she responded that she would if that were her only option but that she would like to grow her business.  

Motion (Pfeiffer/Wallschlager) to approve a Class “B” Beer/“Class B” Liquor License for Hartbrook Café.  Trustee Conner expressed concern that the license would be used for a limited amount of alcohol rather than a wider selection of alcoholic beverages.  Trustee Wallschlager asked if hours would be expanded and Ms. Watt stated that she would like to be open for dinners if it works out.  She stated that her hours are Monday through Saturday from 6 a.m. to 2 p.m., Sunday 6 a.m. to 1 p.m. She stated that she would like to be open for fish fry on Fridays from 4 to 8 p.m.  Vote taken – motion carried.  Conner opposed.

4. First Reading of Bill for an Ordinance 02-13-2023 “An Ordinance to Amend the Village of Hartland Municipal Code Pertaining to Signs”.  

Village Manager Bailey stated that the changes to the ordinance are recommended and Village Attorney de la Mora provided a draft.  He asked that any questions or comments on the draft language be submitted to him.  President Pfannerstill stated that a resident had expressed concerns with the existing language and stated that it should be in line with the state statutes.  He further stated that he felt the limitation of 16 square feet on any visible side should be amended to 32 square feet.  The draft will be amended and placed on the next Village Board agenda for a second reading.

5. Discussion and consideration of concept review for 1225 Walnut Ridge proposed building.

Eric Neumann and Dan Hlavachek (zoom) provided an overview of a proposed 40,000 to 60,000 square foot building at 1225 Walnut Ridge.  It was stated that there would be some flexibility depending on the type of tenants.  It was stated that this was a concept review only at this meeting.  It was stated that the property is currently zoned for this type of use.  Motion (Hallquist/Conner) to approve this project be moved on to the Plan Commission for conceptual review. Motion carried.

6. Discussion and consideration of concept review for 700 W. Capitol Drive development.

John Ford presented conceptual plans for a multi-family development, Hartland Quarry, which will be a mix of types of units.  Village Manager Bailey stated that after the conceptual review at the Plan Commission, staff will consider all details including traffic flow.  It was stated that the development would have a total of 448 units and be all rentals.  Trustee Wallschlager voiced concerns about the development being renter occupied rather than owner occupied. She stated that she also had concerns about parking and other issues.  Motion (Conner/Pfeiffer) to approve this project be moved on to the Plan Commission for conceptual review. 

Trustee Wallschlager asked whether this would be developer financed or require TIF.  It was stated that the intent is to seek TIF and Village Manager Bailey stated that the project would go through the process including verifying values with Ehlers.  President Pfannerstill asked what the value of the development would be.  It was stated that it is still too early in the process but estimated to total in the $70M range.  It was confirmed that construction traffic would enter/exit off Hwy 83.  Trustee Truttschel asked whether the developer had considered owner occupied and it was stated that it will be evaluated as the process moves forward.  Vote taken; motion carried.  Wallschlager opposed.

7. Discussion and consideration of a fireworks contract with Fivestar Fireworks Company.

Rec Director Rennekamp asked the Board for direction related to the 2023 fireworks show.  She stated that if the Village maintains the $17,000 budget, the show will be slightly shorter due to cost increases.  After discussion, motion (Pfeiffer/Conner) to approve a contract with an increase of $1,000 for a total contract price of $18,000 with Firestar Fireworks Company  to maintain the same length/intensity in 2023.  Motion carried.

8. Discussion and consideration of a Special Events Permit for Goat Yoga, Wisconsin Athletic Club, on June 4 or June 11, 2023.

Rec Director Rennekamp and Kayla Jaskowiak with Wisconsin Athletic Club presented information related to an application for a Special Events Permit for Goat Yoga in Nixon Park on June 4.  It was stated that the event will be open to members and non-members although attendees will need to register with WAC.  She stated that the goats will be 6 months old or younger, 40” tall fencing will be installed, and insurance will be provided by the farm and WAC.  It was stated that the Park Board had recommended approval of the event.  It was stated that they anticipate up to 40 attendees with attendees being required to be 16 years old or older.  Motion (Pfeiffer/Hallquist) to approve a Special Events Permit for Goat Yoga for WAC on June 4 in Nixon Park.  Motion carried.

9. [bookmark: _Hlk127365362]Discussion and consideration of the Waukesha County Department of Emergency Preparedness Joint Powers Agreement, County 911 Emergency System.

Chief Misko stated that having this agreement in place is a statutory requirement and that the Village enters into this agreement with Waukesha County on an annual basis.  Motion (Hallquist/Wallschlager) to approve the Waukesha County Department of Emergency Preparedness Joint Powers Agreement, County 911 Emergency System.  Motion carried.

10. Discussion and consideration of having traffic lights at Hwy 83 and Cardinal and Hwy 83 and North Shore be painted black at a cost of $20,000 to be split with the City of Delafield or leaving them gray at no additional cost.

Village Manager Bailey stated that this item had come from the City of Delafield.  Motion (Conner/Hallquist) to keep the traffic lights at Hwy 83 and Cardinal and Hwy 3 and North Shore gray (unpainted).  Motion carried.

11. Discussion and consideration of awarding a contract for the 2023 Utilities Program.

DPW Director Felkner stated that six bids had been received with the lowest bid received from D. F. Tomasini Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $230,902 and that staff is recommending awarding the contract.  Motion (Hallquist/Wallschlager) to award the 2023 Utilities Program contract to D. F. Tomasini Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $230,902.  Motion carried.

12. Announcements:  The following individuals will be given an opportunity to make announcements at the meeting in regards to (1) activities taken since the previous meeting on behalf of the community, (2) future municipal activities, and (3) communications received from citizens.  It is not contemplated that these matters will be discussed or acted upon.  The following individuals may provide announcements:  Village President or individual Village Board members or Village Administrator or other Village Staff members.

DPW Director Felkner stated that the 2022 budgeted water truck was received.

Rec Director Rennekamp reported that 178 people attended the Feb. 4 Moonlight Hike led by the Ice Age Trail.  She stated that Summer Camp information was posted with registration opening March 1.  She reported that there are 90 children signed up for t-ball and $9,000 has been raised for the Hometown Celebration.

Chief Misko updated the board on recent staff assignments and that he had recently attended a meeting regarding police reform and how to implement the executive order.  The Police Department annual report will be delivered soon and presented at the next Village Board meeting.  

Chief Jambretz reported that staff is continuing to prepare the Medicare/Medicaid survey and call volume continues to be high.  The staff is working on licensing that is due in June.  The department spent two evenings at the Legion for the recent event.  

Trustee Pfeiffer stated that he had been working with Rec Director Rennekamp on securing funding for Hometown Celebration and encouraged others to reach out to potential donors.

Trustee Truttschel commented that the Fire and PD support for the Legion’s event was outstanding and the community was very supportive.  

President Pfannerstill stated that in-person absentee voting continues through Friday, Feb. 17 at 5:00 p.m.  Election day is Feb. 21 with the spring election on April 4.

President Pfannerstill asked staff to place a request for volunteers on social media asking that interested parties submit a volunteer profile sheet to the Village Clerk.

13. Adjournment.

Motion (Pfeiffer/Wallschlager) to adjourn at 7:44 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Darlene Igl
Village Clerk
